Owens Corning Form 10-Q October 23, 2013 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

Þ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2013

or

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 1-33100

Owens Corning

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

43-2109021

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

One Owens Corning Parkway, Toledo, OH

(Address of principal executive offices)

43659

(Zip Code)

(419) 248-8000

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes b No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).

Yes b No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check

one):

Large accelerated filer b

Accelerated filer "

Non-accelerated filer " (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes " No þ

As of October 15, 2013, 117,721,366 shares of registrant s common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, were outstanding.

Contents

Table of Contents

Cove	r Page		1	
PAR	TI FINA	ANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)		
	Item 1.	Financial Statements Consolidated Statements of Earnings Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings Consolidated Balance Sheets Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 1. General 2. Segment Information 3. Inventories 4. Derivative Financial Instruments 5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 6. Property, Plant and Equipment 7. Acquisitions 8. Divestitures 9. Warranties 10. Cost Reduction Actions 11. Debt 12. Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits 13. Contingent Liabilities and Other Matters 14. Stock Compensation 15. Earnings per Share 16. Fair Value Measurement 17. Income Taxes 18. Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 19. Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements	3 4 5 6 7 7 7 9 10 12 13 14 14 14 14 16 18 19 20 23 24 26 27 27	
	Item 2.	Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	40	
	Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	51	
	Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	51	
PAR	TII OT	HER INFORMATION		
	Item 1.	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	52	
	Item 1A.	Risk Factors	52	
	Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	52	
	Item 3.	<u>Defaults Upon Senior Securities</u>	52	
	Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	52	
	Item 5.	Other Information	52	
	Item 6.	Exhibits	52	
		Signatures Exhibit Index	53 54	

- 3 -

PART I

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

(unaudited)

(in millions, except per share amounts)

	Three Months Ended Sep. 30,]		ths Ended		
		2013		2012		2013		2012	
NET SALES	\$	1,320	\$	1,276	\$	4,017	\$	4,013	
COST OF SALES		1,067		1,074		3,284		3,386	
Gross margin		253		202		733		627	
OPERATING EXPENSES									
Marketing and administrative expenses		128		115		395		380	
Science and technology expenses		19		20		57		60	
Charges related to cost reduction actions		6		-		8		36	
Other (income) expenses, net		(6)		8		(8)		19	
Total operating expenses		147		143		452		495	
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES		106		59		281		132	
Interest expense, net		29		29		87		85	
EARNINGS BEFORE TAXES		77		30		194		47	
Less: Income tax expense (benefit)		26		(14)		71		8	
Equity in net earnings of affiliates		-		-		-		-	
NET EARNINGS		51		44		123		39	
Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests		-		-		1		2	
NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNING	\$	51	\$	44	\$	122	\$	37	
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNING									
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS									
Basic	\$	0.43	\$	0.37	\$	1.03	\$	0.31	
Diluted	\$	0.43	\$	0.37	\$	1.02	\$	0.31	
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES									
Basic		118.0		117.9		118.4		119.8	
Diluted		118.8		118.8		119.3		120.6	

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of this Statement.

- 4 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS

(unaudited)

(in millions)

	Three Months Ended Sep. 30,			Nine Months Ender Sep. 30,			led	
	20)13	20)12	2	013	20	012
NET EARNINGS	\$	51	\$	44	\$	123	\$	39
Currency translation adjustment		15		28		(30)		9
Pension and other postretirement adjustment (net of tax of \$2, \$0 \$7, and \$0 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012,								
respectively)		2		(1)		11		(2)
Deferred income on hedging (net of tax of \$0 and \$(1) for both the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively)		-		2		-		3
COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS		68		73		104		49
Less: Comprehensive earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests		-		-		1		2
COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNING	\$	68	\$	73	\$	103	\$	47

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of this Statement.

- 5 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(unaudited)

(in millions)

ASSETS	Sep. 30, 2013			ec. 31, 2012
CURRENT ASSETS				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	51	\$	55
Receivables, less allowances of \$13 at Sep. 30, 2013, and \$17 at Dec. 31, 2012		758		600
Inventories		834		786
Other current assets		270		176
Total current assets		1,913		1,617
Property, plant and equipment, net		2,905		2,903
Goodwill		1,166		1,143
Intangible assets		1,046		1,045
Deferred income taxes		482		604
Other non-current assets		215		256
TOTAL ACCIDES	Φ.	7 707	Ф	7.560
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	7,727	\$	7,568
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY				
CURRENT LIABILITIES				
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$	938	\$	907
Short-term debt		8		5
Long-term debt current portion		3		4
Total current liabilities		949		916
Long-term debt, net of current portion		2,175		2,076
Pension plan liability		452		480
Other employee benefits liability		265		274
Deferred income taxes		35		38
Other liabilities		200		209
OWENS CORNING STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY				
Preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share (a)		-		-
Common stock, par value \$0.01 per share (b)		1		1
Additional paid in capital		3,961		3,925
Accumulated earnings		573		451
Accumulated other comprehensive deficit		(382)		(364)
Cost of common stock in treasury (c)		(538)		(475)
Total Owens Corning stockholders equity		3,615		3,538
Noncontrolling interests		36		37

Total equity	3,651	3,575
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY	\$ 7 727	\$ 7 568

- (a) 10 shares authorized; none issued or outstanding at Sep. 30, 2013, and Dec. 31, 2012
- (b) 400 shares authorized; 135.5 issued and 117.7 outstanding at Sep. 30, 2013; 135.6 issued and 118.3 outstanding at Dec. 31, 2012
- (c) 17.8 shares at Sep. 30, 2013, and 17.3 shares at Dec. 31, 2012

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of this Statement.

- 6 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(unaudited)

(in millions)

	Nine Mon Sep.	
	2013	2012
NET CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES		
Net earnings	\$ 123	\$ 39
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to cash provided by operating activities:		
Depreciation and amortization	235	269
Gain on sale of fixed assets	(6)	(3)
Deferred income taxes	57	(25)
Provision for pension and other employee benefits liabilities	27	33
Stock-based compensation expense	21	18
Other non-cash	(13)	(9)
Change in working capital	(214)	(171)
Pension fund contribution	(30)	(42)
Payments for other employee benefits liabilities	(16)	(17)
Other	(21)	1
Net cash flow provided by operating activities	163	93
NET CASH FLOW USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES		
Additions to plant and equipment	(199)	(235)
Investment in subsidiaries and affiliates, net of cash acquired	(62)	-
Proceeds from Hurricane Sandy insurance claims	26	-
Proceeds from sale of affiliates	17	12
Purchases of alloy	(15)	-
Proceeds from sale of alloy	16	-
Net cash flow used for investing activities	(217)	(223)
NET CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES		
Proceeds from senior revolving credit and receivables securitization facilities	1,063	1,205
Payments on senior revolving credit and receivables securitization facilities	(957)	(929)
Payments on long-term debt	(1)	(13)
Net increase (decrease) in short-term debt	3	(9)
Purchases of noncontrolling interest	-	(22)
Purchases of treasury stock	(63)	(113)
Other	7	9
Net cash flow provided by financing activities	52	128
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash	(2)	1

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(4)	(1)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	55	52
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD	\$ 51	\$ 51

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of this Statement.

- 7 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)

1. GENERAL

Unless the context requires otherwise, the terms Owens Corning, Company, we and our in this report refer to Owens Corning, a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries.

The Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report are unaudited, pursuant to certain rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and include, in the opinion of the Company, adjustments necessary for a fair statement of the results for the periods indicated, which, however, are not necessarily indicative of results which may be expected for the full year. The December 31, 2012, balance sheet data was derived from audited financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S.). In connection with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes included in this report, reference is made to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes contained in the Company s 2012 annual report on Form 10-K. Certain reclassifications have been made to the periods presented for 2012 to conform to the classifications used in the periods presented for 2013.

2. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has two reportable segments: Composites and Building Materials. Accounting policies for the segments are the same as those for the Company s reportable segments are defined as follows:

Composites comprised of our Reinforcements and Downstream businesses. Within the Reinforcements business, the Company manufactures, fabricates and sells glass reinforcements in the form of fiber. Within the Downstream business, the Company manufactures and sells glass fiber products in the form of fabrics, mat, veil and other specialized products.

Building Materials comprised of our Insulation and Roofing businesses. Within the Insulation business, the Company manufactures and sells fiberglass insulation into residential, commercial, industrial and other markets for both thermal and acoustical applications. It also manufactures and sells glass fiber pipe insulation, energy efficient flexible duct media, bonded and granulated mineral wool insulation, and foam insulation used in above- and below-grade construction applications. Within the Roofing business, the Company manufactures and sells residential roofing shingles and oxidized asphalt materials used in residential and commercial construction and specialty applications.

- 8 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NET SALES

The following table summarizes our net sales by segment, geographic region and product group (in millions). External customer sales are attributed to geographic region based upon the location from which the product is shipped to the external customer.

	Three Months Ended Sep. 30,				Nine Months Ended Sep. 30,				
		2013		2012	12 2			2012	
Reportable Segments									
Composites	\$	453	\$	459	\$	1,384	\$	1,433	
Building Materials		902		855		2,762		2,719	
Total reportable segments		1,355		1,314		4,146		4,152	
Corporate eliminations		(35)		(38)		(129)		(139)	
•		, ,		, ,					
NET SALES	\$	1,320	\$	1,276	\$	4,017	\$	4,013	
	-	-,	-	-,	-	.,	_	.,	
External Customer Sales by Geographic Region									
United States	\$	909	\$	856	\$	2,797	\$	2,755	
Europe		135		133		412		431	
Asia Pacific		156		165		455		477	
Other		120		122		353		350	
NET SALES	\$	1,320	\$	1,276	\$	4,017	\$	4,013	
Sales by Product Group									
Composites	\$	453	\$	459	\$	1,384	\$	1,433	
Insulation		431		384		1,176		1,055	
Roofing		471		471		1,586		1,664	
Corporate Eliminations		(35)		(38)		(129)		(139)	
NET SALES	\$	1,320	\$	1,276	\$	4,017	\$	4,013	

- 9 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) by segment consist of net sales less related costs and expenses and are presented on a basis that is used internally for evaluating segment performance. Certain items, such as general corporate expenses or income and certain other expense or income items, are excluded from the internal evaluation of segment performance. Accordingly, these items are not reflected in EBIT for our reportable segments and are included in the Corporate, Other and Eliminations category.

The following table summarizes EBIT by segment (in millions):

	Т	hree Mo Sep	nths End	ded	ľ		onths Ended ep. 30,	
	2013		20	2012		2013		012
Reportable Segments								
Composites	\$	21	\$	11	\$	62	\$	68
Building Materials		114		86		332		242
Total reportable segments	\$	135	\$	97	\$	394	\$	310
Corporate, Other and Eliminations								
Charges related to cost reduction actions and related items (a)	\$	(11)	\$	(22)	\$	(23)	\$	(109)
Losses related to Hurricane Sandy		(2)		-		(16)		-
General corporate expense and other		(16)		(16)		(74)		(69)
EBIT	\$	106	\$	59	\$	281	\$	132

3. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following (in millions):

⁽a) For the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, includes \$6 million and \$0 million, respectively, of charges related to cost reduction actions and \$5 million and \$22 million, respectively, of other related cost reduction action items. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, includes \$8 million and \$36 million, respectively, of charges related to cost reduction actions and \$15 million and \$73 million, respectively, of other related items.

	Sep. 30, 2013	Dec. 31, 2012	
Finished goods	\$ 584	\$ 554	
Materials and supplies	250	232	
Total inventories	\$ 834	\$ 786	

- 10 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed to, among other risks, the impact of changes in commodity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, and interest rates in the normal course of business. The Company s risk management program is designed to manage the exposure and volatility arising from these risks, and utilizes derivative financial instruments to offset a portion of these risks. The Company uses derivative financial instruments only to the extent necessary to hedge identified business risks, and does not enter into such transactions for trading purposes.

The Company generally does not require collateral or other security with counterparties to these financial instruments and is therefore subject to credit risk in the event of nonperformance; however, the Company monitors credit risk and currently does not anticipate nonperformance by other parties. Contracts with counterparties generally contain right of offset provisions. These provisions effectively reduce the Company s exposure to credit risk in situations where the Company has gain and loss positions outstanding with a single counterparty. It is the Company s policy to offset on the Consolidated Balance Sheets the amounts recognized for derivative instruments with any cash collateral arising from derivative instruments executed with the same counterparty under a master netting agreement. As of September 30, 2013, and December 31, 2012, the Company did not have any amounts on deposit with any of its counterparties, nor did any of its counterparties have any amounts on deposit with the Company.

The following table presents the fair value of derivatives and hedging instruments and the respective location on the Consolidated Balance Sheets (in millions):

			Fair V	Value at	
	Location	Sep. 30, 2013		Dec. 20	
Derivative liabilities designated as hedging instruments:					
Cash flow hedges:					
Natural gas and electricity	Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$	1	\$	1
Amount of loss recognized in OCI (effective portion)	OCI	\$	1	\$	1
Fair value hedges:					
Interest rate swaps	Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$	1	\$	-
Derivative assets not designated as hedging instruments:					
Foreign exchange contracts	Other current assets	\$	1	\$	1
Derivative liabilities not designated as hedging instruments:					
Foreign exchange contracts	Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$	1	\$	3

- 11 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following table presents the impact and respective location of derivative activities on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings (in millions):

		Three Months Ended Sep. 30,			Nine Month Sep. 3			ided			
	Location	20	13	20	12	201		2013		20	12
Derivative activity designated as hedging instruments:											
Natural gas and electricity:											
Amount of loss reclassified from OCI into earnings (effective											
portion)	Cost of sales	\$	1	\$	1	\$	-	\$	6		
Interest rate swaps:											
Amount of loss recognized in earnings	Interest expense	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-		
Derivative activity not designated as hedging instruments:											
Natural gas and electricity:											
Amount of (gain) recognized in earnings	Other (income) expenses, net	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	(1)		
Foreign currency exchange contract:											
Amount of loss recognized in earnings (a)	Other (income) expenses, net	\$	1	\$	1	\$	12	\$	5		

⁽a) Losses related to foreign currency derivatives were substantially offset by net revaluation impacts on foreign denominated balance sheet exposures, which were also recorded in other expenses.

Cash Flow Hedges

The Company uses forward and swap contracts, which qualify as cash flow hedges, to manage forecasted exposure to commodity prices. The effective portion of the change in the fair value of cash flow hedges is deferred in accumulated OCI and is subsequently recognized in cost of sales on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings for commodity hedges, when the hedged item impacts earnings. Changes in the fair value of derivative assets and liabilities designated as hedging instruments are shown in other within operating activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Any portion of the change in fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments that is determined to be ineffective is recorded in other (income) expenses, net on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

The Company currently has natural gas and electricity commodity derivatives designated as hedging instruments that mature within 15 months. The Company s policy for natural gas exposures is to hedge up to 75% of its total forecasted exposures for the next two months, up to 50% of its total forecasted exposures for the following four months, and lesser amounts for the remaining periods. The Company s policy for electricity exposures is to hedge up to 75% of its total forecasted exposures for the current calendar year and up to 65% of its total forecasted exposures for the first calendar year forward. Based on market conditions, approved variation from the standard policy may occur. The Company performs an

analysis for effectiveness of its derivatives designated as hedging instruments at the end of each quarter based on the terms of the contract and the underlying item being hedged.

- 12 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As of September 30, 2013, \$1 million of losses included in accumulated OCI on the Consolidated Balance Sheets relate to contracts that will impact earnings during the next 12 months. Transactions and events that are expected to occur over the next 12 months that will necessitate recognizing these deferred amounts include the recognition of the hedged item through earnings.

Fair Value Hedges

The Company manages its interest rate exposure by balancing the mixture of its fixed and variable rate instruments through interest rate swaps. The swaps are carried at fair value and recorded as other assets or liabilities, with the offset to long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in the fair value of these swaps and that of the related debt are recorded in interest expense, net on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

Other Derivatives

The Company uses forward currency exchange contracts to manage existing exposures to foreign exchange risk related to assets and liabilities recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Gains and losses resulting from the changes in fair value of these instruments are recorded in other (income) expenses, net on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets and goodwill consist of the following (in millions):

Sep. 30, 2013	Weighted Average Useful Life	Ca	Gross Carrying Amount		mulated rtization	Carrying nount
Amortizable intangible assets:						
Customer relationships	18	\$	180	\$	(65)	\$ 115
Technology	20		196		(71)	125
Franchise and other agreements	14		36		(16)	20
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:						
Trademarks			786		-	786
Total intangible assets		\$	1,198	\$	(152)	\$ 1,046
Goodwill		\$	1,166			

Dec. 31, 2012	Weighted Average Useful Life	Ca	Gross rrying nount	ing Accumulated			Carrying nount
Amortizable intangible assets:	10	Φ.	1.00	Φ.	(50)	Φ.	
Customer relationships	19	\$	169	\$	(58)	\$	111
Technology	20		198		(64)		134
Franchise and other agreements	14		37		(14)		23
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:							
Trademarks			777		-		777
Total intangible assets		\$	1,181	\$	(136)	\$	1,045
Goodwill		\$	1,143				

- 13 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The changes in the net carrying amount of goodwill by segment are as follows (in millions):

			Bı	ıilding				
	Composites Mate			aterials	s Total			
Balance as of December 31, 2012	\$	56	\$	1,087	\$	1,143		
Acquisitions (see Note 7)		2		22		24		
Foreign currency adjustments		(1)		-		(1)		
Balance as of September 30, 2013	\$	57	\$	1,109	\$	1,166		

Other Intangible Assets

The Company expects the ongoing amortization expense for amortizable intangible assets to be approximately \$22 million in each of the next five fiscal years. The Company s future cash flows are not materially impacted by its ability to extend or renew agreements related to our amortizable intangible assets.

Goodwill

The Company tests goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment during the fourth quarter of each year, or more frequently should circumstances change or events occur that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. No testing was deemed necessary in the third quarter of 2013.

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following (in millions):

	Sep. : 201		ec. 31, 2012
Land	\$	222	\$ 222
Buildings and leasehold improvements		817	789
Machinery and equipment	3	,302	3,223
Construction in progress		202	147
	4	,543	4,381

Accumulated depreciation	(1,638)	(1,478)
Property, plant and equipment, net	\$ 2,905	\$ 2,903

Machinery and equipment includes certain precious metals used in our production tooling, which comprise approximately 17 percent and 18 percent of total machinery and equipment as of September 30, 2013, and December 31, 2012, respectively. Precious metals used in our production tooling are depleted as they are consumed during the production process, which typically represents an annual expense of less than 3% of the outstanding carrying value.

- 14 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

7. ACQUISITIONS

During the third quarter of 2013, the Company made cash payments of \$10 million related to our July 31, 2011 acquisitions of FiberTEK Insulation West, LLC and FiberTEK Insulation, LLC. Deferred payments totaling \$15 million remain outstanding and are due in annual installments through 2018. As of September 30, 2013, the deferred payments are recorded at their net present value of \$5 million in accounts payable and accrued liabilities and \$8 million in other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

During the second quarter of 2013 the Company completed the acquisitions of Thermafiber Inc., a leading manufacturer of mineral wool commercial and industrial insulation products located in Indiana and Tanaka Kikinzoku (Suzhou) Co., Ltd, a producer of glass fiber bushings in China.

The Company provided total consideration that had a fair value of \$52 million at the acquisition dates. The acquisitions resulted in the recognition of \$19 million in intangible assets; and \$24 million in goodwill. The pro-forma effect of these acquisitions on revenues and earnings was not material.

8. DIVESTITURES

On September 13, 2013, the Company signed an agreement to sell its Composites glass reinforcements facility in Hangzhou, Peoples Republic of China for total compensation of approximately \$70 million to the Hangzhou Municipal Land Reservation Center and the Development and Construction Management Office of Taoyuan New Zone of Gongshu District in Hangzhou (Hangzhou Government), both of which are unrelated third party government entities. On September 17, 2013, the Company received \$17 million in cash, which is recorded as a deposit on the sale. An additional deposit of \$18 million is expected to be received in the fourth quarter of 2013. The balance of the compensation, approximately \$35 million, is payable upon returning the land to the Hangzhou Government, which is expected during the first half of 2014. The sale will result in a pre-tax gain of approximately \$30 million to \$40 million, which will be recognized at the transaction closing.

9. WARRANTIES

The Company records a liability for warranty obligations at the date the related products are sold. Adjustments are made as new information becomes available. A reconciliation of the warranty liability is as follows (in millions):

	Nine Months Ended Sep. 30, 2013	l
Beginning balance	\$ 41	
Amounts accrued for current year	18	
Settlements of warranty claims	(18)
Ending balance	\$ 41	

10. COST REDUCTION ACTIONS 2013 Cost Reduction Actions

As a result of the Company s decision to divest its Composites glass reinforcements facility in Hangzhou, Peoples Republic of China discussed in Note 8 above, we have recorded \$6 million in charges related to cost reduction actions on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the three month period ended September 30, 2013.

- 15 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

10. COST REDUCTION ACTIONS (continued)

The following table summarizes the status of the unpaid liabilities from the Company s 2013 cost reduction actions (in millions):

	Beginning Balance				Bal	ding ance	Cumi	ulative	
	Dec. 31, 2012	Costs Incurred		Payments		Sep. 30, 2013		Charges Incurred	
Severance	\$ -	\$ 6	\$	-	\$	6	\$	6	
Total	\$ -	\$ 6	\$	_	\$	6	\$	6	

2012 Cost Reduction Actions

As a result of evaluating market conditions in our Composites segment, we took actions to improve the competitive position of our global manufacturing network by closing certain facilities, with our most significant actions taking place in France, Spain and Italy. These actions were primarily due to market conditions that led to lower capacity requirements within the European region. In conjunction with these actions, the Company recorded \$5 million and \$17 million in charges related to cost reduction actions and related items for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, respectively; of which, \$0 million and \$2 million, respectively, is related to severance and is included in charges related to cost reduction actions on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings. The \$5 million and \$15 million of other charges consist of \$2 million and \$6 million in accelerated depreciation due to the shortened expected useful life of the closed facilities and \$3 million and \$9 million in other related charges that primarily consisted of facility closure and related other exit costs, respectively.

The following table summarizes the status of the unpaid liabilities from the Company s 2012 cost reduction actions (in millions):

	Bal Dec	Beginning Balance Dec. 31, 2012		Costs Incurred		Payments		Ending Balance Sep. 30, 2013		Cumulative Charges Incurred	
Severance	\$	45	\$	2	\$	15	\$	32	\$	53	
Total	\$	45	\$	2	\$	15	\$	32	\$	53	

- 16 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

11. DEBT

Details of the Company s outstanding long-term debt are as follows (in millions):

	ep. 30, 2013	ec. 31, 2012
6.50% senior notes, net of discount, due 2016	\$ 400	\$ 400
9.00% senior notes, net of discount, due 2019	248	247
4.20% senior notes, net of discount, due 2022	599	599
7.00% senior notes, net of discount, due 2036	540	540
Accounts receivable securitization facility, maturing in 2016	212	141
Senior revolving credit facility, maturing in 2016	108	73
Various capital leases, due through and beyond 2050	50	52
Various floating rate debt, maturing through 2027	1	2
Fair value adjustment to debt	20	26
Total long-term debt	2,178	2,080
Less current portion	3	4
•		
Long-term debt, net of current portion	\$ 2,175	\$ 2,076

Senior Notes

The Company issued \$600 million of senior notes on October 17, 2012, \$350 million of senior notes on June 3, 2009, and \$1.2 billion of senior notes on October 31, 2006, which are collectively referred to as the Senior Notes. The Senior Notes are general unsecured obligations of the Company and rank *pari passu* with all existing and future senior unsecured indebtedness of the Company.

The Senior Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by each of the Company s current and future domestic subsidiaries that are a borrower or guarantor under the Company s Credit Agreement (as defined below). The guarantees are unsecured and rank equally in right of payment with all other existing and future senior unsecured indebtedness of the guarantors. The guarantees are effectively subordinated to existing and future secured debt of the guarantors to the extent of the assets securing that indebtedness.

The Company has the option to redeem all or part of the Senior Notes at any time at a make whole redemption price. The Company is subject to certain covenants in connection with the issuance of the Senior Notes that it believes are usual and customary. The Company was in compliance with these covenants as of September 30, 2013.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company terminated all of its then existing interest rate swaps designated to hedge a portion of the 6.5% senior notes due 2016. The swaps were carried at fair value and recorded as other assets or liabilities, with a fair value adjustment to long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The fair value adjustment to debt will be amortized through 2016 as a reduction to interest expense in conjunction with the maturity date of the notes.

On June 28, 2013, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements effective July 1, 2013 to manage its interest rate exposure by swapping \$100 million of fixed rate to variable rate exposure designated against our 4.2% senior notes due 2022. The swaps are carried at fair value and recorded as other assets or liabilities, with a fair value adjustment to long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

- 17 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

11. DEBT (continued)

Senior Credit Facility

In July 2011, the Company amended the credit agreement (the Credit Agreement) for the \$800 million multi-currency senior revolving credit facility (the Senior Revolving Credit Facility) to extend the maturity to July 2016 and reduce the pricing. The Senior Revolving Credit Facility includes both borrowings and letters of credit. Borrowings under the Senior Revolving Credit Facility may be used for general corporate purposes and working capital. The Company has the discretion to borrow under multiple options, which provide for varying terms and interest rates including the United States prime rate or LIBOR plus a spread.

The Senior Revolving Credit Facility contains various covenants, including a maximum allowed leverage ratio and a minimum required interest expense coverage ratio that the Company believes are usual and customary for a senior unsecured credit agreement. The Company was in compliance with these covenants as of September 30, 2013.

The Company had \$4 million of letters of credit outstanding under the Senior Revolving Credit Facility at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

Receivables Securitization Facility

Included in long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are amounts outstanding under a Receivables Purchase Agreement (the RPA) that are accounted for as secured borrowings in accordance with ASC 860, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing. Owens Corning Sales, LLC and Owens Corning Receivables LLC, each a subsidiary of the Company, have a \$250 million RPA with certain financial institutions. The securitization facility was amended in the third quarter of 2013 to extend maturity to July 2016 and reduce the size of the facility to \$200 million during the months of November, December, and January each year. At September 30, 2013, the Company utilized the full amount permitted under the terms of the RPA. The Company had \$38 million and \$37 million of letters of credit outstanding under the receivables securitization facility at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

The RPA contains various covenants, including a maximum allowed leverage ratio and a minimum required interest expense coverage ratio that the Company believes are usual and customary for a securitization facility. The Company was in compliance with these covenants as of September 30, 2013.

Owens Corning Receivables LLC s sole business consists of the purchase or acceptance through capital contributions of trade receivables and related rights from Owens Corning Sales, LLC and the subsequent retransfer of or granting of a security interest in such trade receivables and related rights to certain purchasers who are party to the RPA. Owens Corning Receivables LLC is a separate legal entity with its own separate creditors who will be entitled, upon its liquidation, to be satisfied out of Owens Corning Receivables LLC s assets prior to any assets or value in Owens Corning Receivables LLC becoming available to Owens Corning Receivables LLC s equity holders. The assets of Owens Corning Receivables LLC are not available to pay creditors of the Company or any other affiliates of the Company or Owens Corning Sales, LLC.

Short-Term Debt

At September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, short-term borrowings were \$8 million and \$5 million, respectively. The short-term borrowings for both periods consisted of various operating lines of credit and working capital facilities. Certain of these borrowings are collateralized by

receivables, inventories or property. The borrowing facilities are typically for one-year renewable terms. The weighted average interest rate on short-term borrowings was approximately 5.5% for September 30, 2013, and 4.5% for December 31, 2012.

- 18 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS **Pension Plans**

The Company sponsors defined benefit pension plans. Under the plans, pension benefits are based on an employee s years of service and, for certain categories of employees, qualifying compensation. Company contributions to these pension plans are determined by an independent actuary to meet or exceed minimum funding requirements. In our U.S. plan prior to 2013 and in all of our Non-U.S plans, the unrecognized cost of any retroactive amendments and actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the average future service period of plan participants expected to receive benefits. As of January 1, 2013, an increase in the number of inactive participants in our U.S. plan resulted in substantially all of the plan participants being inactive. Accordingly, we elected to begin amortizing the unrecognized cost of any retroactive amendments and actuarial gains and losses over the average remaining life expectancy of the inactive participants as opposed to the average remaining service period of the active participants.

The following tables provide information regarding pension expense recognized (in millions):

		Three Months Ended						Three Months Ended					
		Sep. 30, 2013					Sep. 30, 2012						
	τ	J .S.	Non	-U.S.	T	otal	τ	J .S.	Non	-U.S.	Te	otal	
Components of Net Periodic Pension Cost													
Service cost	\$	2	\$	-	\$	2	\$	3	\$	1	\$	4	
Interest cost		11		5		16		12		5		17	
Expected return on plan assets		(14)		(7)		(21)		(15)		(7)		(22)	
Amortization of actuarial loss		4		1		5		6		2		8	
Net periodic pension cost	\$	3	\$	(1)	\$	2	\$	6	\$	1	\$	7	

	Nine Months Ended						Nine Months Ended					
	Sep. 30, 2013					Sep. 30, 2012						
	U	J .S.	Noi	n-U.S.	T	otal	ι	J .S.	Noi	ı-U.S.	To	otal
Components of Net Periodic Pension Cost												
Service cost	\$	7	\$	4	\$	11	\$	7	\$	5	\$	12
Interest cost		33		16		49		37		17		54
Expected return on plan assets		(44)		(19)		(63)		(45)		(20)		(65)
Amortization of actuarial loss		11		4		15		18		4		22
Net periodic pension cost	\$	7	\$	5	\$	12	\$	17	\$	6	\$	23

The Company expects to contribute approximately \$20 million in cash to the United States Pension Plans and another \$18 million to non-United States plans during 2013. The Company made cash contributions of approximately \$30 million to the plans during the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

Postemployment and Postretirement Benefits Other than Pension Plans

The Company maintains healthcare and life insurance benefit plans for certain retired employees and their dependents. The health care plans in the United States are non-funded and pay either (1) stated percentages of covered medically necessary expenses, after subtracting payments by Medicare or other providers and after stated deductibles have been met, or (2) fixed amounts of medical expense reimbursement.

- 19 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

12. PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit cost for aggregated United States and non-United States Plans for the periods indicated (in millions):

	,		onths End p. 30,	led	N	ed		
	2	2013		2012		13	20)12
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost								
Service cost	\$	1	\$	1	\$	2	\$	2
Interest cost		2		2		7		8
Amortization of prior service cost		(1)		(1)		(3)		(3)
Amortization of actuarial gain		(1)		(1)		(1)		(2)
Net periodic benefit cost	\$	1	\$	1	\$	5	\$	5

13. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND OTHER MATTERS Litigation

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings relating to employment, product liability and other matters (collectively, Proceedings). The Company regularly reviews the status of such Proceedings along with legal counsel. Liabilities for such Proceedings are recorded when it is probable that the liability has been incurred and when the amount of the liability can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities are adjusted when additional information becomes available. Management believes that the amount of any reasonably possible losses in excess of any amounts accrued, if any, with respect to such Proceedings or any other known claim, including the matters described below under the caption Environmental Matters (the Environmental Matters) will not be material to the Company s financial statements. Management believes that the ultimate disposition of the Proceedings and the Environmental Matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company s operations or financial condition taken as a whole.

Environmental Matters

We have been deemed by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to be a Potentially Responsible Party (PRP) with respect to certain sites under the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act. We have also been deemed a PRP under similar state or local laws and in other instances other PRPs have brought suits against us as a PRP for contribution under such federal, state, or local laws. At September 30, 2013, we had environmental remediation liabilities as a PRP at 20 sites where we have a continuing legal obligation to either complete remedial actions or contribute to the completion of remedial actions as part of a group of PRPs. For these sites we estimate a reserve to reflect environmental liabilities that have been asserted or are probable of assertion, in which liabilities are probable and reasonably estimable. At September 30, 2013, our reserve for such liabilities was \$6 million.

Kearny, New Jersey Manufacturing Facility

During the week of October 29, 2012, the Company experienced a flood at its Kearny, New Jersey manufacturing facility as a result of Hurricane Sandy. This facility is insured for property damage and business interruption losses related to such events, subject to deductibles and policy limits. The Company believes that all costs/losses will be substantially covered by insurance; however, the timing of any recoveries may result in expenses being taken in periods before the insurance receipts

- 20 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

13. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND OTHER MATTERS (continued)

are recorded or received. For the three months ended September 30, 2013, the Company incurred losses related to clean up activities and business interruption in the amount of \$4 million reported in Cost of Sales and \$9 million reported in Other (income) expenses, net, on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings, partially offset by \$11 million of insurance proceeds recorded in Other (income) expenses, net, on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company incurred losses related to clean up activities and business interruption in the amount of \$26 million reported in Cost of Sales and \$16 million reported in Other (income) expenses, net, on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings, partially offset by \$26 million of insurance proceeds recorded in Other (income) expenses, net, on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

14. STOCK COMPENSATION 2013 Stock Plan

On April 18, 2013, the Company s stockholders approved the Owens Corning 2013 Stock Plan (the 2013 Stock Plan) which replaced the 2010 Stock Plan. The 2013 Stock Plan authorizes grants of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, bonus stock awards and performance stock awards. Under the 2013 Stock Plan, 1.5 million shares of common stock may be granted in addition to the shares of Company common stock that rolled over from the 2010 Stock Plan as of April 18, 2013. Such shares of common stock include shares that were available but not granted, or which were granted but were not issued or delivered due to expiration, termination, cancellation or forfeiture of such awards. There will be no future grants made under the 2010 Stock Plan. At September 30, 2013 the number of shares remaining available under the 2013 Stock Plan for all stock awards was 3.4 million.

Stock Options

The Company has granted stock options under its stockholder approved stock plans. The Company calculates a weighted-average grant-date fair value using a Black-Scholes valuation model for options granted. Compensation expense for options is measured based on the fair market value of the option on the date of grant, and is recognized on a straight-line basis over a four year vesting period. In general, the exercise price of each option awarded was equal to the market price of the Company s common stock on the date of grant and an option s maximum term is 10 years. The volatility assumption was based on a benchmark study of our peers.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, 329,800 stock options were granted with a weighted-average grant date fair value of \$18.94. Assumptions used in the Company s Black-Scholes valuation model to estimate the grant date fair value were expected volatility of 45.3%, expected dividends of 0%, expected term of 6.25 years and a risk-free interest rate of 1.2%.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company recognized expense of \$1 million and \$4 million respectively, related to the Company s stock options. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company recognized expense of \$1 million and \$3 million respectively, related to the Company s stock options. As of September 30, 2013, there was \$9 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.68 years. The total aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 was \$25 million and \$19 million.

- 21 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

14. STOCK COMPENSATION (continued)

The following table summarizes the Company s stock option activity for the nine months ended Sep. 30, 2013:

Nine Months Ended

Sep. 30 2013 Weighted-Number of Average **Options Exercise Price** Beginning Balance 3,025,220 27.78 Granted 329,800 42.16 Exercised (540,725)26.96 Forfeited 34.58 (56,500)**Ending Balance** \$ 29.52 2,757,795

The following table summarizes information about the Company s options outstanding and exercisable:

	Options Outstanding Weighted-Average			Options Exercisable Number Weighted-Average			
Range of Exercise Prices	Options	Remaining Contractual Life	Ex	erage xercise Price	Number Exercisable at Sep. 30, 20130	Remaining	Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices	Outstanding	Contractual Life	,	rrice	at Sep. 50, 2013.	ontractual Eli	e Frice
\$13.89- \$42.16	2,757,795	5.60	\$	29.52	1,948,220	4.45	\$ 26.73

Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units

The Company has granted restricted stock awards and restricted stock units (collectively referred to as restricted stock) under its stockholder approved stock plans. Compensation expense for restricted stock is measured based on the market price of the stock at date of grant and is recognized on a straight-line basis over the four-year vesting period. Stock restrictions are subject to alternate vesting plans for death, disability, approved early retirement and involuntary termination, over various periods ending in 2017.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company recognized expense of \$4 million and \$12 million respectively, related to the Company s restricted stock. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company recognized expense of \$3 million and \$11 million respectively. As of September 30, 2013, there was \$28 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted stock. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.75 years. The total fair value of shares vested during

the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was \$16 million and \$11 million, respectively.

- 22 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

14. STOCK COMPENSATION (continued)

A summary of the status of the Company s plans that had restricted stock issued as of September 30, 2013, and changes during the nine months ended September 30, 2013, are presented below:

Nine Months Ended Sep. 30, 2013 Weighted-Average Grant-Date

	Number of Shares	Fair Value		
Beginning Balance	1,875,065	\$	27.14	
Granted	497,694		41.13	
Vested	(602,501)		25.92	
Forfeited	(75,869)		34.54	
Ending Balance	1,694,389	\$	31.35	

Performance Stock Awards and Performance Stock Units

The Company has granted performance stock awards and performance stock units (collectively referred to as PSUs) as a part of its long-term incentive plan. Outstanding grants issued in 2013 will be fully settled in stock and outstanding grants issued in 2011 and 2012 will be settled 50 percent in stock and 50 percent in cash. The amount of the stock and/or cash ultimately distributed is contingent on meeting various company or stockholder return goals.

Compensation expense for PSUs settled in stock is measured based on the grant date fair value and is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Compensation expense for PSUs settled in cash is measured based on the fair value at the end of each quarter and is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Vesting will be accelerated in the case of death or disability, and awards earned will be paid at the end of the three-year period.

In the first nine months of 2013, the Company granted PSUs. The 2013 grants vest after a three-year period based on the Company s total stockholder return relative to the performance of the companies in the S&P 500 Index for the respective three-year period. The amount of stock distributed will vary from 0% to 200% of PSUs awarded depending on the relative stockholder return performance.

For all PSUs, respectively during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company recognized a gain of \$1 million and an expense of \$5 million. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company recognized expense of \$5 million and \$11 million, respectively, related to PSUs. As of September 30, 2013, there was \$12 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to PSUs. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.86 years.

- 23 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

14. STOCK COMPENSATION (continued)

A summary of the status of the Company s plans that had restricted stock issued as of September 30, 2013, and changes during the nine months ended September 30, 2013, are presented below:

Nine Months Ended

Sep. 30, 2013 Weighted-Average Grant-Date

		GI	Grant-Date		
	Number				
	of PSUs	Fa	ir Value		
Beginning Balance	412,910	\$	49.14		
Granted	207,050		56.71		
Forfeited	(40,550)		50.36		
Ending Balance	579.410	\$	51.76		

2013 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On April 18, 2013, the Company s stockholders approved the Owens Corning Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP). The ESPP is a tax-qualified plan under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code. The purchase price of shares purchased under the ESPP is equal to 85% of the lower of the fair market value of shares of Owens Corning common stock at the beginning or ending of the offering period, which is a six-month period ending on May 31 and November 30 of each year. There are 2 million shares available for purchase under the ESPP as of its approval date. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company had expense of \$0.4 million and \$0.6 million respectively. As of September 30, 2013, there was less than \$1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the ESPP.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table summarizes the number of shares outstanding as well as our basic and diluted earnings per-share (in millions, except per share amounts):

	Three Months Ended Sep. 30,				Nine Months Ended Sep. 30,			
	2013	2	012	2	2013	2	012	
Net earnings attributable to Owens Corning	\$ 51	\$	44	\$	122	\$	37	

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding used for basic				
earnings per share	118.0	117.9	118.4	119.8
Non-vested restricted and performance shares	0.4	0.6	0.4	0.5
Options to purchase common stock	0.4	0.3	0.5	0.3
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding and common				
equivalent shares used for diluted earnings per share	118.8	118.8	119.3	120.6
Earnings per common share attributable to Owens Corning common stockholders:				
Basic	\$ 0.43	\$ 0.37	\$ 1.03	\$ 0.31
Diluted	\$ 0.43	\$ 0.37	\$ 1.02	\$ 0.31

- 24 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing earnings attributable to Owens Corning by the weighted-average number of shares of the Company s common stock outstanding during the period. Outstanding shares consist of issued shares less treasury stock.

On April 25, 2012, the Company announced a new share buy-back program under which the Company is authorized to repurchase up to 10 million shares of the Company is outstanding common stock (the 2012 Repurchase Program). The 2012 Repurchase Program is in addition to the share buy-back program announced August 4, 2010, (the 2010 Repurchase Program and collectively with the 2012 Repurchase Program, the Repurchase Programs). The Repurchase Programs authorize the Company to repurchase shares through the open market, privately negotiated, or other transactions. The actual number of shares repurchased will depend on timing, market conditions and other factors and will be at the Company is discretion. We repurchased 1.4 million shares of the Company is common stock for \$54 million during the third quarter of 2013 under previously announced repurchase programs. As of September 30, 2013, 8.6 million shares remain available for repurchase under the authorized programs.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, the number of shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share did not include 0.2 million non-vested Restricted and Performance shares, 1.0 and 0.7 million of options to purchase common stock respectively, 17.5 million common equivalent shares from Series A Warrants or 7.8 million common equivalent shares from Series B Warrants due to their anti-dilutive effect.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the number of shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share did not include 0.3 million options to purchase common stock, 17.5 million common equivalent shares from Series A Warrants or 7.8 million common equivalent shares from Series B Warrants due to their anti-dilutive effect.

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT Items Measured at Fair Value

The Company classifies and discloses assets and liabilities carried at fair value in one of the following three categories:

- Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.
- Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

- 25 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

The following table summarizes the fair values, and levels within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall, for assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2013 (in millions):

	Meast F	otal ured at air alue	Ot Obser Inp	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)		ficant ervable outs		
Assets:				vel 1)	· ·	ĺ		
Cash equivalents	\$	18	\$	18	\$	-	\$	-
Term deposits		2		-		2		-
Derivative assets		1		-		1		-
Total assets	\$	21	\$	18	\$	3	\$	-
<u>Liabilities:</u> Derivative liabilities	\$	(3)	\$	-	\$	(3)	\$	-
Total liabilities	\$	(3)	\$	-	\$	(3)	\$	-

The following table summarizes the fair values, and levels within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall, for assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2012 (in millions):

	Total Measured at Fair Value	Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Assets:				

Cash equivalents	\$ 1	\$ 1	\$ -	\$ -
Term deposits	1	-	1	-
Derivative assets	1	-	1	-
Total assets	\$ 3	\$ 1	\$ 2	\$ -
Liabilities:				
Derivative liabilities	\$ (4)	\$ -	\$ (4)	\$ -
Total liabilities	\$ (4)	\$ -	\$ (4)	\$ -

Cash equivalents, by their nature and less than 90 day maturity, utilize Level 1 inputs in determining fair value. Term deposits utilize Level 2 inputs in determining fair value based on their longer term maturity. Term deposits are included in other current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company measures the value of its natural gas hedge contracts and foreign currency forward contracts using Level 2 inputs. The fair value of the Company s natural gas hedges is determined by a mark to market valuation based on forward curves using observable market prices and the fair value of its foreign currency forward contracts is determined using observable market transactions in over-the-counter markets.

- 26 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Items Disclosed at Fair Value

Long-term notes receivable

The fair value has been calculated using the expected future cash flows discounted at market interest rates. The Company believes that the carrying amounts reasonably approximate the fair values of long-term notes receivable. Long-term notes receivable were \$10 million and \$53 million as of September 30, 2013, and December 31, 2012, respectively. The decline in the fair value of long-term notes receivable was due to the reclassification of a receivable to other current assets related to the 2011 sale of our Stone business.

Long-term debt

The fair value of the Company s long-term debt has been calculated based on quoted market prices for the same or similar issues, or on the current rates offered to the Company for debt of the same remaining maturities.

As of September 30, 2013, and December 31, 2012, respectively, the Company s 6.50% senior notes due 2016 were trading at approximately 113% and 112% of par value, the 9.00% senior notes due 2019 were trading at approximately 122% and 127% of par value, the 4.2% senior notes due 2022 were trading at approximately 97% and 102% of par value, and the 7.00% senior notes due 2036 were trading at approximately 109% and 109% of par value.

At September 30, 2013, and December 31, 2012, the Company determined that the book value of the remaining long-term debt instruments approximates market value. This approach, using level 1 inputs and utilizing indicative market rates for a new debt issuance, approximated the fair value of the remaining long-term debt at \$370 million and \$268 million respectively.

17. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, was \$26 million and \$71 million, respectively. For the third quarter and year-to-date 2013, the Company s effective tax rate was 34 percent and 37 percent, respectively. For both periods, the difference between the effective tax rate and the statutory rate of 35 percent is primarily attributable to various tax planning initiatives and the tax accounting treatment related to various locations which are currently in a loss position.

Income tax expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, was a benefit of \$14 million and an expense of \$8 million, respectively. For the third quarter and year-to-date 2012, the Company's effective tax rate was (47) percent and 17 percent, respectively. The third quarter 2012 effective tax rate is reflective of a cumulative adjustment attributable to lower estimated tax expense for 2012. For both periods, the difference between the effective tax rate and the statutory rate of 35 percent is primarily attributable to the tax accounting treatment related to various locations which are currently in a loss position and various tax planning initiatives.

- 27 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

18. CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The following table summarizes the changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) for the three months ended September 30, 2013 (in millions):

	Не	r Flow edge ivity	Be Pens	efined enefit ion Plan ctivity	Val Allo	OCI uation owance tivity	Cur Trans	reign rency slation stment	Т	otal (
Balance as of June 30, 2013, net of tax	\$	(1)	\$	(270)	\$	(113)	\$	(15)	\$	(399)
Amounts classified into AOCI, net of tax		(1)		-		-		15		14
Amounts reclassified from AOCI, net of tax		1		2		-		-		3
Change in AOCI, net of tax		-		2		-		15		17
Balance as of September 30, 2013, net of tax	\$	(1)	\$	(268)	\$	(113)	\$	-	\$	(382)

The following table summarizes the changes in AOCI for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 (in millions):

	Не	Flow edge ivity	Be Pens	efined enefit ion Plan ctivity	Val Allo	OCI uation owance tivity	Curi Trans	eign rency slation stment	Т	'otal
Balance as of December 31, 2012, net of tax	\$	(1)	\$	(279)	\$	(114)	\$	30	\$	(364)
Amounts classified into AOCI, net of tax		(2)		2		1		(30)		(29)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI, net of tax		2		9		-		-		11
Change in AOCI, net of tax		-		11		1		(30)		(18)
Balance as of September 30, 2013, net of tax	\$	(1)	\$	(268)	\$	(113)	\$	-	\$	(382)

The following table presents the impact and respective location of AOCI reclassifications on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings, net of tax (in millions):

Three Months	Nine Months
Ended	Ended

		Sep	. 30,	Sep	. 30,
	Location	20	13	20)13
Cash Flow Hedge Activity	Cost of sales	\$	1	\$	2
Defined Benefit Pension Plan Activity	Cost of sales		2		7
Defined Benefit Pension Plan Activity	Marketing and administrative expenses		-		2
Total reclassifications from AOCI		\$	3	\$	11

19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements present the financial information required with respect to those entities which guarantee certain of the Company s debt. The Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements are presented on the equity method. Under this method, the investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost and adjusted for the Company s share of the subsidiaries cumulative results of operations, capital contributions, distributions and other equity changes. The principal elimination entries eliminate investment in subsidiaries and intercompany balances and transactions.

- 28 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Guarantor and Nonguarantor Financial Statements

The Senior Notes and the Senior Revolving Credit Facility are guaranteed, fully, unconditionally and jointly and severally, by each of Owens Corning s current and future 100% owned material domestic subsidiaries that is a borrower or a guarantor under Owens Corning s Credit Agreement, which permits changes to the named guarantors in certain situations (collectively, the Guarantor Subsidiaries). The remaining subsidiaries have not guaranteed the Senior Notes and the Senior Revolving Credit Facility (collectively, the Nonguarantor Subsidiaries).

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

(in millions)

	.	Guarantor	Non-Guarantor	F31 4 4	
	Parent	Subsidiaries	Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated
NET SALES	\$ -	\$ 921	\$ 497	\$ (98)	\$ 1,320
COST OF SALES	(3)	739	429	(98)	1,067
Gross margin	3	182	68	-	253
OPERATING EXPENSES					-
Marketing and administrative expenses	25	68	35	-	128
Science and technology expenses	-	13	6	-	19
Charges related to cost reduction actions	-	-	6	-	6
Other (income) expenses, net	(10)	4	-	-	(6)
Total operating expenses	15	85	47	-	147
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND					
TAXES	(12)	97	21	-	106
Interest expense, net	27	-	2	-	29
EARNINGS BEFORE TAXES	(39)	97	19	-	77
Less: Income tax expense (benefit)	(16)	32	10	-	26
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries	74	9	-	(83)	-
Equity in net earnings of affiliates	-	-	-	-	-

NET EARNINGS	51	74	9	(83)	51
Less: Net earnings attributable to					
noncontrolling interests	-	-	-	-	-
NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO					
OWENS CORNING	\$ 51	\$ 74	\$ 9	\$ (83)	\$ 51

- 29 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

(in millions)

	Paren			rantor idiaries	 Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		Eliminations		olidated
NET SALES	\$	-	\$	895	\$ 485	\$	(104)	\$	1,276
COST OF SALES	((3)		741	440		(104)		1,074
Gross margin		3		154	45		-		202
OPERATING EXPENSES									
Marketing and administrative expenses	2	4		58	33		-		115
Science and technology expenses		-		15	5		-		20
Charges related to cost reduction actions		-		-	-		-		-
Other (income) expenses, net	((6)		24	(10)		-		8
Total operating expenses	1	8		97	28		-		143
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES Interest expense, net		5)		57 -	17 2		- -		59 29
EARNINGS BEFORE TAXES	(4	2)		57	15		_		30
Less: Income tax expense (benefit)		6)		11	(9)		-		(14)
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries	`	0		25	-		(95)		-
Equity in net earnings of affiliates		_		(1)	1		-		-
NET EARNINGS	1	4		70	25		(95)		44
Less: Net earnings attributable to	4	· 4		70	23		(93)		44
noncontrolling interests		-		-	-		-		-
NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNING	\$ 4	4	\$	70	\$ 25	\$	(95)	\$	44

- 30 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

(in millions)

	Pai	rent	Guarantor Non-Guarantor ent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries I		Elim	Eliminations		solidated	
NET SALES	\$	-	\$	2,872	\$ 1,451	\$	(306)	\$	4,017
COST OF SALES		(7)		2,340	1,257		(306)		3,284
Gross margin		7		532	194		-		733
OPERATING EXPENSES									-
Marketing and administrative expenses		89		202	104		-		395
Science and technology expenses		-		43	14		-		57
Charges related to cost reduction actions		-		-	8		-		8
Other (income) expenses, net		(17)		-	9		-		(8)
Total operating expenses		72		245	135		-		452
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES Interest expense, net		(65) 81		287 1	59 5		-		281 87
EARNINGS BEFORE TAXES		(146)		286	54		-		194
Less: Income tax expense (benefit)		(57)		91	37		-		71
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries		211		16	-		(227)		-
Equity in net earnings of affiliates		-		-	-		-		-
NET EARNINGS Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling		122		211	17		(227)		123
interests		_		_	1		_		1
NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNING	\$	122	\$	211	\$ 16	\$	(227)	\$	122

- 31 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

(in millions)

	Parent		 arantor sidiaries	Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		Eliminations		Consolidate	
NET SALES	\$	-	\$ 2,846	\$	1,461	\$	(294)	\$	4,013
COST OF SALES		-	2,353		1,327		(294)		3,386
Gross margin		-	493		134		-		627
OPERATING EXPENSES									
Marketing and administrative expenses		86	190		104		-		380
Science and technology expenses		-	47		13		-		60
Charges related to cost reduction actions		-	-		36		-		36
Other (income) expenses, net		(25)	34		10		-		19
Total operating expenses		61	271		163		-		495
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES Interest expense, net		(61) 76	222		(29) 7		-		132 85
EARNINGS BEFORE TAXES		(137)	220		(36)		_		47
Less: Income tax expense (benefit)		(52)	56		4		-		8
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries		122	(41)		-		(81)		-
Equity in net earnings of affiliates		-	(1)		1		-		-
NET EARNINGS		37	122		(39)		(81)		39
Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests		-	-		2		-		2
NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNING	\$	37	\$ 122	\$	(41)	\$	(81)	\$	37

- 32 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

(in millions)

	Pa	rent	 antor diaries	Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		Eliminations		Consolidate	
NET EARNINGS	\$	51	\$ 74	\$	9	\$	(83)	\$	51
Currency translation adjustment		15	-		-		-		15
Pension and other postretirement adjustment									
(net of tax)		2	-		-		-		2
Deferred income (loss) on hedging (net of									
tax)		-	-		-		-		-
COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS		68	74		9		(83)		68
Less: Comprehensive earnings attributable to									
noncontrolling interests		-	-		-		-		-
-									
COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS									
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS									
CORNING	\$	68	\$ 74	\$	9	\$	(83)	\$	68
							. ,		

- 33 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

(in millions)

	Pa	rent	Guarantor Subsidiaries		Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		Eliminations		Consolidate	
NET EARNINGS	\$	44	\$	70	\$	25	\$	(95)	\$	44
Currency translation adjustment		28		-		-		-		28
Pension and other postretirement adjustment										
(net of tax)		(1)		-		-		-		(1)
Deferred income (loss) on hedging (net of										
tax)		2		-		-		-		2
COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS		73		70		25		(95)		73
Less: Comprehensive earnings attributable to										
noncontrolling interests		-		-		-		-		-
-										
COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS										
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS										
CORNING	\$	73	\$	70	\$	25	\$	(95)	\$	73

- 34 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

(in millions)

	Pa	rent		Guarantor Subsidiaries		Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		Eliminations		lidated
NET EARNINGS	\$	122	\$	211	\$	17	\$	(227)	\$	123
Currency translation adjustment		(30)		-		-		-		(30)
Pension and other postretirement adjustment										
(net of tax)		11		-		-		-		11
Deferred income (loss) on hedging (net of										
tax)		-		-		-		-		-
COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS		103		211		17		(227)		104
Less: Comprehensive earnings attributable to										
noncontrolling interests		-		-		1		-		1
COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNING	\$	103	\$	211	\$	16	\$	(227)	\$	103
00111110	Ψ	100	Ψ		Ψ		Ψ	()	Ψ	100

- 35 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

(in millions)

	Pa	rent	 Guarantor Subsidiaries		Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		Eliminations		lidated
NET EARNINGS	\$	37	\$ 122	\$	(39)	\$	(81)	\$	39
Currency translation adjustment		9	-		-		-		9
Pension and other postretirement adjustment									
(net of tax)		(2)	-		-		-		(2)
Deferred income (loss) on hedging (net of									
tax)		3	-		-		-		3
COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS		47	122		(39)		(81)		49
Less: Comprehensive earnings attributable to									
noncontrolling interests		-	-		2		-		2
COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS									
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS									
CORNING	\$	47	\$ 122	\$	(41)	\$	(81)	\$	47
							. ,		

- 36 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

(in millions)

ASSETS	Parent		Guarantor Subsidiaries		Non- Guarantor Subsidiaries		Eliminations		Consolidated	
CURRENT ASSETS		arciit	Sub	siuiai ics	Sub	sidiai ics	15111	iiiiiations	Cons	onuateu
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	1	\$	4	\$	46	\$	-	\$	51
Receivables, less allowances		_		_		758		_		758
Due from affiliates		-		2,726		-		(2,726)		-
Inventories		-		510		324				834
Other current assets		43		132		95		-		270
Total current assets		44		3,372		1,223		(2,726)		1,913
Investment in subsidiaries		7,105		2,405		558		(10,068)		-
Due from affiliates		-		66		966		(1,032)		_
Property, plant and equipment, net		359		1,293		1,253		-		2,905
Goodwill		-		1,127		39		-		1,166
Intangible assets		-		1,017		283		(254)		1,046
Deferred income taxes		60		405		17		-		482
Other non-current assets		20		68		127		-		215
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	7,588	\$	9,753	\$	4,466	\$	(14,080)	\$	7,727
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY										
CURRENT LIABILITIES										
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$	31	\$	599	\$	308	\$	-	\$	938
Due to affiliates		1,550		-		1,176		(2,726)		-
Short-term debt		-		-		8		-		8
Long-term debt current portion		-		2		1		-		3
Total current liabilities		1,581		601		1,493		(2,726)		949

Long-term debt, net of current portion	1,914	27	234	-	2,175
Due to affiliates	-	966	66	(1,032)	-
Pension plan liability	313	-	139	-	452
Other employee benefits liability	-	247	18	-	265
Deferred income taxes	-	-	35	-	35
Other liabilities	165	249	40	(254)	200
OWENS CORNING STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY					
Preferred stock	-	-	-	-	-
Common stock	1	-	-	-	1
Additional paid in capital	3,961	6,558	1,962	(8,520)	3,961
Accumulated earnings	573	1,105	443	(1,548)	573
Accumulated other comprehensive deficit	(382)	-	-	-	(382)
Cost of common stock in treasury	(538)	-	-	-	(538)
Total Owens Corning stockholders equity	3,615	7,663	(2,405)	(10,068)	3,615
Noncontrolling interests	-	_	36	_	36
Total equity	3,615	7,663	2,441	(10,068)	3,651
Tom equity	2,015	,,505	_,	(10,000)	2,001
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY	\$ 7,588	\$ 9,753	\$ 4,466	\$ (14,080)	\$ 7,727
• •	\$,	\$,	\$,	\$, , ,	\$ ŕ

- 37 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

(in millions)

	Guarantor			Non- Guarantor						
ASSETS	P	arent	Sub	sidiaries	Sub	osidiaries	Elir	ninations	Consolidated	
CURRENT ASSETS										
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	-	\$	3	\$	52	\$	-	\$	55
Receivables, less allowances		-		-		600		-		600
Due from affiliates		-		2,528		-		(2,528)		-
Inventories		-		473		313		-		786
Other current assets		5		75		96		-		176
Total current assets		5		3,079		1,061		(2,528)		1,617
Investment in subsidiaries		6,877		2,489		558		(9,924)		-
Due from affiliates		-		65		1,022		(1,087)		-
Property, plant and equipment, net		374		1,294		1,235		-		2,903
Goodwill		-		1,068		75		-		1,143
Intangible assets		-		939		302		(196)		1,045
Deferred income taxes		54		525		25		-		604
Other non-current assets		62		74		120		-		256
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	7,372	\$	9,533	\$	4,398	\$	(13,735)	\$	7,568
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY										
CURRENT LIABILITIES										
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$	8	\$	620	\$	279	\$	-	\$	907
Due to affiliates		1,419		-		1,109		(2,528)		-
Short-term debt		-		-		5		-		5
Long-term debt current portion		-		2		2		-		4
Total current liabilities		1,427		622		1,395		(2,528)		916

Long-term debt, net of current portion	1,884	28	164	-	2,076
Due to affiliates	-	1,022	65	(1,087)	-
Pension plan liability	331	-	149	-	480
Other employee benefits liability	-	254	20	-	274
Deferred income taxes	-	-	38	-	38
Other liabilities	192	172	41	(196)	209
OWENS CORNING STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY					
Preferred stock	-	-	-	-	-
Common stock	1	-	-	-	1
Additional paid in capital	3,925	6,541	2,062	(8,603)	3,925
Accumulated earnings	451	894	427	(1,321)	451
Accumulated other comprehensive deficit	(364)	-	-	-	(364)
Cost of common stock in treasury	(475)	-	-	-	(475)
Total Owens Corning stockholders equity	3,538	7,435	2,489	(9,924)	3,538
Noncontrolling interests	-	-	37	-	37
Total equity	3,538	7,435	2,526	(9,924)	3,575
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY	\$ 7,372	\$ 9,533	\$ 4,398	\$ (13,735)	\$ 7,568

- 38 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

(in millions)

	Parent	Guarantor Subsidiaries	Non- Guarantor Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated
NET CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY					
OPERATING ACTIVITIES	\$ (63)	\$ 105	\$ 121	\$ -	\$ 163
NET CASH FLOW USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES					
Additions to plant and equipment	(5)	(70)	(124)	-	(199)
Investment in subsidiaries and affiliates, net of					
cash acquired	-	(51)	(11)	_	(62)
Proceeds from Hurricane Sandy insurance claims	-	26	-		26
Proceeds from the sale of affiliates	-	-	17	-	17
Purchases of alloy	-	-	(15)	-	(15)
Proceeds from sale of alloy	16	-	-	-	16
Net cash flow used for investing activities	11	(95)	(133)	-	(217)
NET CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES					
Proceeds from senior revolving credit and					
receivables securitization facilities	940	-	123	-	1,063
Payments on senior revolving credit and					
receivables securitization facilities	(906)	-	(51)	-	(957)
Payments on long-term debt	-	-	(1)	-	(1)
Net increase (decrease) in short-term debt	-	-	3	-	3
Purchases of treasury stock	(63)	-	-	-	(63)
Other intercompany loans	75	(9)	(66)	-	-
Other	7	-	-	-	7
Net cash flow provided by financing activities	53	(9)	8	-	52

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash	-	-	(2)	-	(2)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	1	1	(6)	-	(4)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	-	3	52	-	55
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD	\$ 1	\$ 4	\$ 46	\$ _	\$ 51

- 39 -

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(unaudited)

19. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

(in millions)

	Parent	Guarantor Subsidiaries	Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated
NET CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY					
OPERATING ACTIVITIES	\$ (64)	\$ 37	\$ 120	\$ -	\$ 93
NET CASH FLOW USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES					
Additions to plant and equipment	(22)	(123)	(90)	-	(235)
Proceeds from the sale of affiliates	-	5	7	-	12
Net cash flow used for investing activities	(22)	(118)	(83)	-	(223)
NET CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES Proceeds from senior revolving credit and					
receivables securitization facilities	1,089		116		1,205
Payments on senior revolving credit and	1,009	-	110	-	1,203
receivables securitization facilities	(835)		(94)		(929)
Payments on long-term debt	(4)	<u>-</u>	(9)	-	(13)
Net increase (decrease) in short-term debt	(8)	-	(1)	-	(9)
Purchases of noncontrolling interest	(8)	(22)	(1)	-	(22)
Purchase of treasury stock	(113)	(22)	-		(113)
Other intercompany loans	(52)	103	(51)		(113)
Other	9	103	(31)	-	9
Ottlei	9	-	-	-	9
Net cash flow provided by financing activities	86	81	(39)	-	128
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash	-	-	1	-	1
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	-	-	(1)	-	(1)
•	-	-	52	-	52

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT					
END OF PERIOD	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 51	\$ -	\$ 51

- 40 -

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Management s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to help investors understand Owens Corning, our operations and our present business environment. MD&A is provided as a supplement to, and should be read in conjunction with, our Consolidated Financial Statements and the accompanying Notes thereto contained in this report. Unless the context requires otherwise, the terms Owens Corning, Company, we and our in this report refer to Owens Corning and its subsidiaries.

GENERAL

Owens Corning is a leading global producer of glass fiber reinforcements and other materials for composites and of residential and commercial building materials. The Company s business operations fall within two reportable segments, Composites and Building Materials. Composites includes our Reinforcements and Downstream businesses. Building Materials includes our Insulation and Roofing businesses. Through these lines of business, we manufacture and sell products worldwide. We maintain leading market positions in many of our major product categories.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

We reported \$106 million in earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) for the third quarter 2013. We generated \$119 million in adjusted earnings before interest and taxes (Adjusted EBIT) for the third quarter 2013. Third quarter EBIT in our Building Materials segment increased by \$28 million and EBIT in our Composites segment increased by \$10 million compared to the same period in 2012.

Restructuring actions initiated in 2012 represented \$5 million of the amount adjusted out of reported EBIT to arrive at adjusted EBIT, with the majority of the charges related to the repositioning of our European assets in our Composites business. We have also adjusted out \$6 million of charges related to cost reduction actions associated with closing and selling our Hangzhou, China Composites glass reinforcements facility further discussed in Note 8 and Note 10 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. Lastly, we have adjusted out \$2 million of net losses related to a flood that occurred during October of 2012 in our Kearny, New Jersey roofing manufacturing facility as a result of Hurricane Sandy. The Company believes related costs and business interruption losses will be substantially covered by insurance. In the third quarter of 2013, we have reached full operating capacity at this facility and continue to service our customers without any interruption. See below for further information regarding adjusted EBIT, including the reconciliation to net earnings attributable to Owens Corning.

In our Composites segment, EBIT in the third quarter 2013 was \$21 million compared to \$11 million in the same period in 2012. The increase was primarily driven by lower plant start up and maintenance costs and improved capacity utilization.

In our Building Materials segment, EBIT in the third quarter 2013 was \$114 million, compared to \$86 million in the same period in 2012. In our Roofing business, EBIT increased \$13 million due to higher selling prices and improved manufacturing productivity. Our Insulation business increased EBIT \$15 million compared to the same period in 2012 on higher selling prices and sales volumes.

We maintain a strong balance sheet with ample liquidity. We have access to an \$800 million senior revolving credit facility and a \$250 million receivables securitization facility, both of which have a July 2016 maturity date. We have no significant debt maturities before 2016.

Year-to-date 2013, we have generated \$163 million in cash flow from operating activities compared to \$93 million over the same period of 2012. This improvement was primarily from improved earnings, partially offset by increased investment in working capital.

We repurchased 1.4 million shares of the Company s common stock for \$54 million during the third quarter of 2013 under previously announced repurchase programs. As of September 30, 2013, 8.6 million shares remain available for repurchase under the authorized programs.

- 41 -

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated Results (in millions)

		Three Mor Sep	nded	Nine Months Ended Sep. 30,				
		2013	2	2012		2013	13 2	
Net sales	\$	1,320	\$	1,276	\$	4,017	\$	4,013
Gross margin	\$	253	\$	202	\$	733	\$	627
% of net sales		19%		16%		18%		16%
Charges related to cost reduction actions	\$	6	\$	-	\$	8	\$	36
Earnings before interest and taxes	\$	106	\$	59	\$	281	\$	132
Interest expense, net	\$	29	\$	29	\$	87	\$	85
Income tax expense	\$	26	\$	(14)	\$	71	\$	8
Net earnings attributable to Owens Corning	\$	51	\$	44	\$	122	\$	37

The Consolidated Results discussion below provides a summary of our results and the trends affecting our business, and should be read in conjunction with the more detailed Segment Results discussion that follows.

NET SALES

Third quarter and year-to-date net sales increased \$44 million and \$4 million, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2012. For both the third quarter and year-to-date comparisons, the increase in net sales was mainly due to higher sales volumes in our Insulation business which were partially offset by lower sales volumes in our Roofing business.

GROSS MARGIN

Gross margin as a percentage of sales was higher in both the third quarter and year-to-date comparisons. In the third quarter, the increase was due to higher contribution margins across all of our businesses. For year-to-date 2013, higher Roofing and Insulation contribution margins were the primary drivers of the increase. In addition, gross margin included \$4 million and \$26 million of charges in the third quarter and year-to-date 2013, respectively, resulting from net losses related to Hurricane Sandy. Gross margin also included \$5 million and \$15 million of charges in the third quarter and year-to-date 2013, respectively resulting from our 2012 restructuring actions. This compares to \$22 million and \$73 million of charges in the third quarter and year-to-date 2012, respectively, related to our 2012 restructuring actions.

CHARGES RELATED TO COST REDUCTION ACTIONS

On September 13, 2013, we entered into an agreement to sell our Composites glass reinforcements facility in Hangzhou, China to the Hangzhou Municipal Land Reservation Center and the Development and Construction Management Office of Taoyuan New Zone of Gongshu District in Hangzhou. This sale is expected to be complete in the first half of 2014. As a result of this action, we recognized \$6 million in charges related to cost reduction actions.

During 2012, we took actions to improve the competitive position of our global Composites manufacturing network through the closure or optimization of certain facilities, with our most significant actions taking place in France, Spain and Italy. These actions were primarily due to market conditions that led to lower capacity requirements within the European region. As a result of these actions, in addition to the charges recorded in cost of sales discussed above, we recognized \$2 million in severance charges year-to-date 2013, none of which occurred in the third

quarter, compared to \$36 million for year-to-date 2012, none of which occurred in the third quarter. The total charges related to cost reduction actions and related items for the third quarter and year-to-date 2013 were \$5 million and \$17 million, respectively, compared to \$22 million and \$109 million for the third quarter and year-to-date 2012, respectively.

- 42 -

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES

EBIT increased by \$47 million for the third quarter 2013 compared to the same period in 2012. Third quarter EBIT in our Building Materials segment increased by \$28 million and third quarter EBIT in our Composites segment increased by \$10 million compared to the same period in 2012. Corporate EBIT losses for the third quarter decreased by \$9 million, due primarily to the lower charges related to cost reduction actions and related items discussed above, compared to the same period in 2012. In addition to the Hurricane Sandy losses discussed above, corporate EBIT also included a net \$2 million and \$10 million gain in Other (income) expense, net for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2013, respectively. These gains were related to insurance proceeds that have been collected to date net of other Hurricane Sandy related expenses.

For year-to-date 2013, EBIT increased by \$149 million compared to the same period in 2012. Year-to-date EBIT in our Building Materials segment increased by \$90 million and year-to-date EBIT in our Composites segment decreased by \$6 million compared to the same period in 2012. Corporate EBIT losses for year-to-date 2013 decreased by \$65 million, due primarily to the lower charges related to cost reduction actions and related items discussed above, compared to the same period in 2012.

INTEREST EXPENSE, NET

Year-to-date 2013 interest expense was higher than in 2012 due primarily to higher average borrowing levels.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, was \$26 million and \$71 million, respectively. For the third quarter and year-to-date 2013, the Company s effective tax rate was 34 percent and 37 percent, respectively. For both periods, the difference between the effective tax rate and the statutory rate of 35 percent is primarily attributable to various tax planning initiatives and the tax accounting treatment related to various locations which are currently in a loss position.

We estimate that the effective tax rate on adjusted earnings for the full year 2013 will be approximately 30 percent. The difference between the effective tax rate of 30 percent and the statutory rate of 35 percent is primarily attributable to lower foreign tax rates and various tax planning initiatives. The increase from our previous estimated effective tax rate on adjusted earnings of 25 percent to 28 percent, to 30 percent was due to a change in geographic mix.

The Company is currently under U.S. federal tax examination for the 2008 through 2010 tax years. The field examination is expected to be completed by the end of 2013. The Company believes that its reserves for uncertain tax positions are adequately stated as of September 30, 2013.

On September 13, 2013, the U.S. Department of the Treasury and the Internal Revenue Service released final regulations providing guidance on applying Section 263(a) of the Internal Revenue Code to amounts paid to acquire, produce, or improve tangible property. The company is currently analyzing the final regulations and expects to be in full compliance by the effective date of January 1, 2014. Based on the Company s initial analysis of the guidance, we do not expect any material impact to our deferred tax assets and liabilities recorded as of September 30, 2013.

Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (Adjusted EBIT)

Adjusted EBIT excludes certain items that management does not allocate to our segment results because it believes they are not a result of the Company s current operations. Adjusted EBIT is used internally by the Company for various purposes, including reporting results of operations to the Board of Directors of the Company, analysis of performance and related employee compensation measures. Although management believes that these adjustments result in a measure that provides a useful representation of our operational performance, the adjusted measure should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for net earnings attributable to Owens Corning as prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

- 43 -

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Adjusting items are shown in the table below (in millions):

	Three Months Ended Sep. 30,					Nine Months Ended Sep. 30,				
	2013		20	012	2013		2012			
Charges related to cost reduction actions and related items	\$	(11)	\$	(22)	\$	(23)	\$	(109)		
Net loss related to Hurricane Sandy		(2)		-		(16)		-		
Total adjusting items	\$	(13)	\$	(22)	\$	(39)	\$	(109)		

The reconciliation from net earnings attributable to Owens Corning to Adjusted EBIT is shown in the table below (in millions):

	Three Months Ended Sep. 30,				ľ	ded		
	2	013	20)12	2	013	2	012
NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNING	\$	51	\$	44	\$	122	\$	37
Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests		-		-		1		2
NET EARNINGS		51		44		123		39
Equity in net earnings of affiliates		-		-		-		-
Income tax expense		26		(14)		71		8
EARNINGS BEFORE TAXES		77		30		194		47
Interest expense, net		29		29		87		85
•								
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES		106		59		281		132
Less: adjusting items from above		(13)		(22)		(39)		(109)
ADJUSTED EBIT	\$	119	\$	81	\$	320	\$	241

Segment Results

EBIT by segment consists of net sales less related costs and expenses and are presented on a basis that is used internally for evaluating segment performance. Certain items, such as general corporate expenses or income and certain other expense or income items, are excluded from the internal evaluation of segment performance. Accordingly, these items are not reflected in EBIT for our reportable segments and are included in the Corporate, Other and Eliminations category, which is presented following the discussion of our reportable segments.

Composites

The table below provides a summary of net sales, EBIT and depreciation and amortization expense for the Composites segment (in millions):

		Three Mo Se _l	onths End	led		Nine Months Ended Sep. 30,			
	:	2013		2012		2013		2012	
Net sales	\$	453	\$	459	\$	1,384	\$	1,433	
% change from prior year		-1%		-7%		-3%		-6%	
EBIT	\$	21	\$	11	\$	62	\$	68	
EBIT as a % of net sales		5%		2%		4%		5%	
Depreciation and amortization expense	\$	33	\$	30	\$	99	\$	91	

- 44 -

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

NET SALES

Third quarter and year-to-date net sales in our Composites business decreased \$6 million and \$49 million, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2012. For the third quarter, the impact of translating sales denominated in foreign currencies into United States dollars was the primary driver of the decline. For the first nine months of 2013, unfavorable mix and the impact of translating sales denominated in foreign currencies into United States dollars contributed about equally to the decline.

EBIT

In our Composites business, EBIT was \$10 million higher in the third quarter 2013 and \$6 million lower for the year-to-date 2013 compared to the same periods in 2012. For the quarter, the increase in EBIT was driven about equally by improved capacity utilization and lower plant start-up and maintenance costs. For the year-to-date comparison, improved capacity utilization and lower plant start up and maintenance costs were offset by inflation. The net decrease was driven by unfavorable mix. Pricing was relatively stable.

OUTLOOK

Global glass reinforcements market demand has historically grown on average with global industrial production and we believe this relationship will continue. In the third quarter and year-to-date 2013, global glass reinforcements market demand continued to grow less than the annual historical average of five percent. Based on the outlook for global industrial production, we expect the market will continue to grow for the remainder of 2013 although again at a rate below the five percent historical average. We continue to expect that the benefits of our asset transformation, increased utilization of our low-cost asset base, and modest growth in global reinforcements demand will result in improved margin in 2013 compared to 2012.

Building Materials

The table below provides a summary of net sales, EBIT and depreciation and amortization expense for the Building Materials segment and our businesses within this segment (in millions):

		Three Months Ended Sep. 30,				Nine Months Ended Sep. 30,				
	2	2013	20)12	2	2013		2012		
Net sales										
Insulation	\$	431	\$	384	\$	1,176	\$	1,055		
Roofing		471		471		1,586		1,664		
Total Building Materials	\$	902	\$	855	\$	2,762	\$	2,719		
% change from prior year		5%		-15%		2%		-2%		
EBIT										
Insulation	\$	18	\$	3	\$	1	\$	(47)		
Roofing		96		83		331		289		
Total Building Materials	\$	114	\$	86	\$	332	\$	242		
EBIT as a % of net sales		13%		10%		12%		9%		
Depreciation and amortization expense										

Insulation Roofing	\$ 26 9	\$ 28 10	\$ 79 28	\$ 80 28
Total Building Materials	\$ 35	\$ 38	\$ 107	\$ 108

NET SALES

Net sales in our Building Materials segment were \$47 million higher in the third quarter 2013 and \$43 million higher for year-to-date 2013 compared to the same periods in 2012. For the quarter, net sales increased due primarily to higher selling prices and sales volumes in our Insulation business. For year-to-date 2013, higher selling prices and sales volumes in our Insulation business were partially offset by lower sales volumes in our Roofing business.

- 45 -

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

In our Roofing business, net sales in the third quarter of 2013 were in-line with the third quarter of 2012 and year-to-date net sales were \$78 million lower compared to the same periods in 2012. For the quarter, slightly higher selling prices were offset by lower sales volumes. For the year-to-date comparison, the impact of lower sales volumes, including lower third-party asphalt sales was partially offset by higher selling prices.

In our Insulation business, net sales were \$47 million higher in the third quarter 2013 compared to the same period in 2012. Higher sales volumes contributed approximately \$20 million in the third quarter and the remaining increase was driven by higher selling prices and increased sales related to the second quarter acquisition of Thermafiber Inc. Year-to-date sales were \$121 million higher compared to the same period in 2012 due to higher selling prices of about \$50 million with the remainder being driven by higher sales volumes and the acquisition of Thermafiber Inc.

EBIT

EBIT for our Building Materials segment increased \$28 million and \$90 million in the third quarter and year-to-date 2013, compared to the same periods in 2012, respectively.

In our Roofing business, EBIT increased \$13 million and \$42 million in the third quarter and year-to-date 2013 compared to the same periods in 2012, respectively. For the third quarter, higher selling prices and lower production costs equally contributed to an \$20 million improvement which was partially offset by the impact of lower sales volumes. For the year-to-date comparison, higher selling prices drove the year over year improvement. The impact of lower sales volumes was offset by about \$30 million in lower production and other operating costs.

In our Insulation business, EBIT increased by \$15 million and \$48 million in the third quarter and year-to-date 2013 compared to the same periods in 2012, respectively. For the third quarter, the increase was driven by higher selling prices of approximately \$15 million. The impact of higher sales volumes was offset by higher general selling and administrative expenses. For the year-to-date comparison, the increase in EBIT was driven by higher selling prices of about \$50 million. The impact of higher sales volumes and manufacturing productivity largely offset the impact of inflation, unfavorable customer mix, and higher general and administrative expenses.

OUTLOOK

During the third quarter of 2013, the average Seasonally Adjusted Annual Rate (SAAR) of United States housing starts rose to approximately 891 thousand starts versus a third quarter average in 2012 of approximately 777 thousand starts. While the recent information on United States housing starts has been positive, the timing and pace of recovery of the United States housing market remains uncertain.

In our Roofing business, we expect the factors that have driven margins in recent years will continue to deliver profitability. Uncertainties that may continue to impact our Roofing margins include competitive pricing pressure and the cost and availability of raw materials, particularly asphalt.

The Company expects our Insulation business to benefit from an improving U.S. housing market, improved pricing, and continued operating leverage. Year-to-date 2013, we have achieved profitability and we expect continued positive growth for the remainder of the year. We believe the geographic, product and channel mix of our portfolio may continue to moderate the impact of any demand-driven variability associated with United States new construction.

- 46 -

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Corporate, Other and Eliminations

The table below provides a summary of EBIT and depreciation and amortization expense for the Corporate, Other and Eliminations category (in millions):

	Т	Three Months Ended Sep. 30,			Nine Months Ended Sep. 30,			
	2	013	2	012	2	2013	2	2012
Charges related to cost reduction actions and related items	\$	(11)	\$	(22)	\$	(23)	\$	(109)
Net loss related to Hurricane Sandy		(2)		-		(16)		-
General corporate expense and other		(16)		(16)		(74)		(69)
EBIT	\$	(29)	\$	(38)	\$	(113)	\$	(178)
Depreciation and amortization	\$	10	\$	21		\$ 29	\$	70

EBIT

In Corporate, Other and Eliminations, EBIT losses for the third quarter and year-to-date 2013 were \$29 million and \$113 million, respectively. For the third quarter and year-to-date periods, we recorded net losses of \$2 million and \$16 million, respectively, in property damage and related charges as a result of Hurricane Sandy s impact on our Roofing facility in Kearny, New Jersey. We recorded \$6 million in charges related to cost reduction actions associated with closing and selling our Composites glass reinforcements facility in Hangzhou, China. Lastly, we incurred an additional \$5 million and \$17 million, respectively, in charges related to cost reduction actions and related items primarily to improve our competitive position in Europe. These charges consist primarily of other related charges and accelerated depreciation charges.

General corporate expense and other in the third quarter of 2013 was in-line with the third quarter of 2012 and year-to-date general corporate expense and other was \$5 million higher compared to the same period in 2012. For the quarter, higher overall incentive compensation expense was offset by a \$6 million gain on the sale of fixed assets. For the year-to-date comparison, higher expenses were due primarily to overall compensation and other general expense increases being partially offset by a decrease in non-service pension costs.

Depreciation and amortization decreased \$11 million for the third quarter and \$41 million year-to-date 2013, compared to the same periods in 2012. For the third quarter and year-to-date comparisons, the decreases were primarily due to including \$2 million and \$6 million, respectively, of accelerated depreciation related to our European restructuring plan compared to \$14 million and \$48 million, respectively, in the same periods a year ago.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS

Liquidity

We have an \$800 million senior revolving credit facility and a \$250 million receivables securitization facility, which serve as our primary sources of liquidity. Our senior revolving credit facility and our receivables securitization facility mature in July 2016. In July 2013, we amended the receivables securitization facility to extend its maturity to July 2016 and to reduce the size of the facility to \$200 million during the months of November, December, and January each year. We have no other significant debt maturities before 2016. As of September 30, 2013, the receivables securitization facility was fully utilized and we had \$688 million available on the senior revolving credit facility. As of September 30, 2013, we had \$2.2 billion of total debt and cash-on-hand of \$51 million.

Cash and cash equivalents held by foreign subsidiaries may be subject to U.S. income taxation upon repatriation to the U.S. We do not provide for U.S. income taxes on the undistributed earnings of these subsidiaries as earnings are reinvested and, in the opinion of management, will continue to be reinvested indefinitely outside of the U.S. As of September 30, 2013, and December 31, 2012, we had approximately \$43 million and \$41 million, respectively, in cash and cash equivalents in certain of our foreign subsidiaries where we consider undistributed earnings for these foreign subsidiaries to be permanently reinvested.

- 47 -

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

We expect that our cash on hand, coupled with future cash flows from operations and other available sources of liquidity, including our senior revolving credit facility, will provide ample liquidity to enable us to meet our cash requirements. Our anticipated uses of cash include capital expenditures, working capital needs, pension contributions, meeting financial obligations and reducing outstanding amounts under the senior revolving credit facility and receivables securitization facility. We have outstanding share repurchase authorizations and will evaluate and consider repurchasing shares of our common stock, as well as strategic acquisitions, divestitures, joint ventures and other transactions to create stockholder value and enhance financial performance. Such transactions may require cash expenditures beyond current sources of liquidity or generate proceeds.

We are closely monitoring the economic environment for the potential impact of changes in the operating conditions of our customers on our operating results. To date, changes in the operating conditions of our customers have not had a material adverse impact on our operating results; however, it is possible that we could experience material losses in the future if current economic conditions worsen.

The agreements applicable to our senior revolving credit facility and the receivables securitization facility contain various covenants that we believe are usual and customary for agreements of these types. The senior revolving credit facility and the securitization facility each include a maximum allowed leverage ratio and a minimum required interest expense coverage ratio. We were in compliance with these covenants as of September 30, 2013.

Cash Flows

The following table presents a summary of our cash balance and cash flows (in millions):

	Three Months Ended Sep. 30,			Nine Months Ended Sep. 30,				
	2	2013	2012		2013		2012	
Cash balance	\$	51	\$	51	\$	51	\$	51
Cash provided by operating activities	\$	175	\$	133	\$	163	\$	93
Cash used for investing activities	\$	(55)	\$	(67)	\$	(217)	\$	(223)
Cash (used for) provided by financing activities	\$	(142)	\$	(71)	\$	52	\$	128
Unused committed credit available under the senior revolving credit facility	\$	688	\$	395	\$	688	\$	395

Operating activities: For year-to-date 2013, we generated \$163 million of cash from operating activities compared to \$93 million in the same period in 2012. This improvement was primarily from improved earnings in our Building Materials segment, partially offset by an increase in working capital.

Investing activities: The \$6 million decrease in cash flows used for investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the same period of 2012 was primarily the result of insurance proceeds related to losses on our Kearny New Jersey manufacturing facility and the timing of additions to property plant and equipment, partially offset by facility acquisitions completed in 2013.

Financing activities: Cash provided by financing activities was \$76 million lower year-to-date 2013, compared to the same period in 2012. The decrease in cash provided by financing activities was due primarily to lower net borrowings on our senior revolving credit facilities partially offset by lower treasury stock repurchases.

2013 Investments

Capital Expenditures: The Company will continue a balanced approach to the use of its cash flow. Operational cash flow will be used to fund the Company s growth and innovation. Capital expenditures in 2013 are expected to be slightly higher than depreciation and amortization, excluding the investment required to rebuild our Kearny roofing plant (resulting from damage sustained from Hurricane Sandy). The Company will also continue to evaluate projects and acquisitions that provide opportunities for growth in our businesses, and invest in them when they meet our strategic and financial criteria.

- 48 -

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Tax Net Operating Losses

Upon emergence and subsequent distribution of contingent stock and cash in January 2007, we generated a significant United States federal tax net operating loss of approximately \$3.0 billion. As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, our federal tax net operating losses remaining were \$2.1 billion and \$2.3 billion, respectively. Our net operating losses are subject to the limitations imposed under section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. These limits are triggered when a change in control occurs, and are computed based upon several variable factors including the share price of the Company s common stock on the date of the change in control. A change in control is generally defined as a cumulative change of 50% or more in the ownership positions of certain stockholders during a rolling three year period. Our initial three year period for measuring an ownership change started at October 31, 2006.

In addition to the United States net operating losses described above, we have net operating losses in various state and foreign jurisdictions which totaled \$3.3 billion and \$807 million as of December 31, 2012, respectively. The evaluation of the amount of net operating losses expected to be realized necessarily involves forecasting the amount of taxable income that will be generated in future years. In assessing the realizability of our deferred tax assets, we have not relied on any material future tax planning strategies. We have forecasted future results using estimates management believes to be reasonable, which are based on independent evidence such as expected trends resulting from certain leading economic indicators such as global industrial production and new U.S. residential housing starts. In order to fully utilize our net operating losses, we estimate that the Company will need to generate future federal, state and foreign earnings before taxes of approximately \$2.7 billion, \$3.5 billion and \$807 million, respectively. Management believes the Company will generate sufficient future taxable income within the statutory limitations in order to fully realize the carrying value of its U.S. federal net operating losses. As of December 31, 2012, a valuation allowance was established for certain state and foreign jurisdictions net operating loss carryforwards.

The realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent on future events. Actual results inevitably will vary from management s forecasts. Should we determine that it is likely that our deferred income tax assets are not realizable, we would be required to reduce our deferred tax assets reflected on our Consolidated Financial Statements to the net realizable amount by establishing an accounting valuation allowance and recording a corresponding charge to current earnings. Such adjustments could be material to the financial statements. To date, we have recorded valuation allowances against certain of these deferred tax assets totaling \$228 million as of December 31, 2012.

Pension Contributions

The Company has several defined benefit pension plans. The Company made cash contributions of approximately \$30 million and \$42 million to the plans during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company expects to contribute \$38 million in cash to its global pension plans during 2013. Actual contributions to the plans may change as a result of several factors, including changes in laws that impact funding requirements. The ultimate cash flow impact to the Company, if any, of the pension plan liability and the timing of any such impact will depend on numerous variables, including future changes in actuarial assumptions, legislative changes to pension funding laws, and market conditions.

Derivatives

The Company is exposed to, among other risks, the impact of changes in commodity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, and interest rates in the normal course of business. To mitigate some of the near-term volatility in our earnings and cash flows, we use financial and derivative instruments to hedge certain exposures, principally currency and energy-related. The Company does not enter into such transactions for trading purposes. Our current hedging practice is to hedge a variable percentage of certain energy and energy-related exposures. Going forward, the results of our hedging practice could be positive, neutral or negative in any period depending on price changes in the hedged exposures, and will tend to mitigate near-term volatility in the exposures hedged. The practice is neither intended nor expected to mitigate longer term exposures. See Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

Our current practice is to manage our interest rate exposure by balancing the mixture of our fixed and variable rate instruments. We utilize, among other strategies, interest rate swaps to achieve this balance in interest rate exposures.

- 49 -

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Fair Value Measurement

Items Measured at Fair Value

The Company classifies and discloses assets and liabilities carried at fair value in one of the following three categories:

- Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.
- Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has entered into limited off balance sheet arrangements, as defined under Securities and Exchange Commission rules, in the ordinary course of business. The Company does not believe these arrangements will have a material effect on the Company s financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Contractual Obligations

In the normal course of business, we enter into contractual obligations to make payments to third parties. During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, there were no material changes to such contractual obligations outside the ordinary course of our business.

SAFETY

Working safely is a condition of employment at Owens Corning. We believe this organization-wide expectation provides for a safer work environment for employees, improves our manufacturing processes, reduces our costs and enhances our reputation. Furthermore, striving to be a world-class leader in safety provides a platform for all employees to understand and apply the resolve necessary to be a high-performing global organization. We measure our progress on safety based on Recordable Incidence Rate (RIR) as defined by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. For the three months ended September 30, 2013, our RIR was 0.47 as compared to 0.34 in the same period a year ago. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, our RIR was 0.48 as compared to 0.51 in the same period a year ago.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

We have been deemed by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to be a Potentially Responsible Party (PRP) with respect to certain sites under the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act. We have also been deemed a PRP under similar state or local laws and in other instances other PRPs have brought suits against us as a PRP for contribution under such federal, state, or local laws. At September 30, 2013, we had environmental remediation liabilities as a PRP at 20 sites where we have a continuing legal obligation to either complete remedial actions or contribute to the completion of remedial actions as part of a group of PRPs. For these sites we estimate a reserve to reflect environmental liabilities that have been asserted or are probable of assertion, in which liabilities are probable and reasonably estimable. At September 30, 2013, our reserve for such liabilities was \$6 million.

- 50 -

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Our disclosures and analysis in this report, including Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Forward-looking statements present our current forecasts and estimates of future events. These statements do not strictly relate to historical or current results and can be identified by words such as anticipate, believe, estimate, expect, intend, likely, project, strategy, will and other terms of similar meaning or import in connection with any discussion of future operating, financial or other performance. These forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected in the statements. These risks, uncertainties and other factors include, without limitation:

levels of residential and commercial construction activity;
levels of global industrial production;
difficulties in managing production capacity;
competitive factors;
pricing factors;
weather conditions;
our level of indebtedness;
industry and economic conditions that affect the market and operating conditions of our customers, suppliers or lenders;
availability and cost of raw materials;
availability and cost of credit;
interest rate movements;
issues related to expansion of our production capacity;

economic and political conditions, including new legislation or other governmental actions;	
issues related to acquisitions, divestitures and joint ventures;	
our ability to utilize our net operating loss carryforwards;	
achievement of expected synergies, cost reductions and/or productivity improvements;	
issues involving implementation of new business systems;	
foreign exchange fluctuations;	
research and development activities; and	

labor disputes.

All forward-looking statements in this report should be considered in the context of the risk and other factors described above and as detailed from time to time in the Company s Securities and Exchange Commission filings. Any forward-looking statements speak only as of the date the statement is made and we undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. It is not possible to identify all of the risks, uncertainties and other factors that may affect future results. In light of these risks and uncertainties, the forward-looking events and circumstances discussed in this report may not occur and actual results could differ materially from those anticipated or implied in the forward-looking statements. Accordingly, users of this report are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements.

- 51 -

ITEM 3. OUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Please refer to the Company s 2012 annual report on Form 10-K for the Company s quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company maintains (a) disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, (the Exchange Act)), and (b) internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act).

The Company s management, with the participation of the Company s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, the Company s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of such period, the Company s disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

During the third quarter of 2013, the Company upgraded its enterprise resource planning system for one of its businesses as part of its overall information technology strategy. The system change was not made in response to any deficiency in the Company s internal controls. There were no other changes in the Company s internal controls over financial reporting that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company s internal controls over financial reporting.

- 52 -

PART II

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed in the Company s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

Recent saids of Christistered Securities, Ose of Frocteds from Registered Securities

None.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information about Owens Corning s purchases of its common stock during each month during the quarterly period covered by this report:

	Total Number of Shares (or Units)	Average Price Paid per Share	Total Number of Shares (or Units) Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or	Maximum Number (or Approximate Dollar Value) of Shares (or Units) that May Yet Be Purchased Under the Plans or	
Period	Purchased	(or Unit)	Programs**	Programs**	
July 1-31, 2013	660,000	\$ 39.64	660,000	9,340,000	
August 1-31, 2013	641,897	38.41	640,000	8,700,000	
September 1-30, 2013	100,647	38.22	100,000	8,600,000	
Total	1,402,544*	\$ 38.98	1,400,000	8,600,000	

^{*} The Company retained 2,544 shares surrendered to satisfy tax withholding obligations in connection with the vesting of restricted shares granted to our employees.

** On April 25, 2012, the Company announced a share buy-back program under which the Company is authorized to repurchase up to 10 million shares of Owens Corning s outstanding common stock. Under the buy-back program, shares may be repurchased through open market, privately negotiated, or other transactions. The timing and actual number of shares repurchased will depend on market conditions and other factors and will be at the Company s discretion.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

See Exhibit Index below, which is incorporated here by reference.

- 53 -

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Owens Corning has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

OWENS CORNING

Registrant

Date: October 23, 2013 By: /s/ Michael C. McMurray

Michael C. McMurray Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (as duly authorized officer)

Date: October 23, 2013 By: /s/ Kelly J. Schmidt

Kelly J. Schmidt Vice President and Controller

- 54 -

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number 31.1	Description Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) (filed herewith).
31.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) (filed herewith).
32.1	Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (filed herewith).
32.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (filed herewith).
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
101.DEF	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
101.LAB	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
101.PRE	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase